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LIS A, Clhiheths N DPEMERAL INVERTWENTYH

Date: 24 Fehruary 2024

Report of the Board of Directors of Umm Al Qaiwain General Investments
Company PSC , on the Financial Resulis of the vear ended 317 Dec , 2023

B gives me great pleasure on behalf of myself and on behalf of the Board of Directors to welcome you and | am pleased o
review a brief of the performance of the compary during the vear 2023 . This Repart represents the Umm Al Qaiwain
General Investmens Company’s performance for the  year 2023 | The company recorded  a net Profic of AED
26,966,864 during the year 2023 compared 1o a net Profivof AED 49,479 595 during the comparative period of 2022 |

surnmary of these resubs are as follows:

Particular Year ended Year ended
Dee., 31,2023 Dec..31.2022
AED AED
Net Profits from Investments 15,138,070 57.143.620
Administrative expense (4.523,726) (4,738,361)
| Other Income 0.0 4,370
Finance Costs (3,647.480) (293003)
Net profit for the period 26,966,864 49,479,595
Total asscts | 698,999,298 68K 814,233
Total Shareholder's equity ' 610,521,053 599,741,001

From the abowe mhle, it's clear that the company achieved a net profic of AED 16966 864 for the year 2023 compared o a
net peofit of AED 49,476,595 during the last year 2022 The decrease in net profit (45%) is mainly due o the EOMpIny
recarding of realized profits fram the sale of some shares during the comparison pesied, of which the company achieved
prafits of approximaredy AED 18,000,000 cormpared o AED 7,000,000 in the current period, in addition o the decrease in
booked vnrealized profis during the current perind (AED B500000) compared ta the comparative period [BED
15,000,000} In general , the company was able to achisve good return on its net operating profit during 2023
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Itis to be noted that the Company is holdinga trading portfolio through profit or loss { Investments for Trade )
amounting 1 ALD 284823364 and Investment at fair value through ether comprehensive income amounting 1o
AED, 196 820,075 with a total amownt AED 481,663,394 , in addition 1w property Investment ( Land ) of AFD 2493 Milkion .

Proposed Dividends :

The Board of Directors proposes the allocation and distribution of net profits for the year ended
as follows: December 31, 2023

AED
Net Profit for the Year 2023. 26,966,864
| 10% transferred to the legal reserve. = (2,696,686)
Net profit for the year after deducting the reserve. Ejd:f?ﬁ,ﬁ'

Net retained earnings afler distribution for the year ending 31Dec. 2022 54,936,548
In addition to loss realized during the year from the sale
of shares at fair value through other comprehensive income

| Retained earnings balance available for dividend 79.206.726
Proposed cash dividend 6 % (21,780,000
Bonus proposed for members of the Board of Directors, (1,350,000)
- A VIRt SRR |
Retained earnings balance after the proposed distribution 1,699,110 |

Last but rot least the Board of Directods is pleased 1o take thes opportunity to extend our degpest thanks and
appreciation tw HH Sheikh Saud bin Rashid Al Mualla, Supreme Coundl Member and Ruler of the Emirate of Umm Al

Quwain and His HiEhI'IEES. the Crevwn Prince for their suppart and comndinuous sponsarship of the COTIPATTY,
~

o
Chairman of the Board ()i
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itor's Repo

The Shareholders

Limim Al Qaiwaln General Investments Company
Public Sharchalding Company

Umm Al Gaiwain - United Arab Emirates

Repor on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinicn

We have audiled the accompanying financial statements of Umm Al Qaiwain General Investments
Company {ihe "Campany”) which comprisa the statement of financial postion as at December 31,
2023 and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changas in
shareholdar's equity and stalement of cash flows for the yvear then ended and rotes Lo the financial
statemants, including material accounting policy information and other explanatory information,

In our opinicn, the financial statements present fairly, In all material respects, the financial pasition af
the Company-as at December 31, 2023, its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
than ended in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for opinion

¥ie conducled our audit in accondance with Intematonal Standards on Audiing (15As5). Our
responsibilties under those standards are lurther described in he “Audilors Responsibililies for the
Audit of the Financial Stalements” section of our repor. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Inlemational Ethics Slandards. Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for
Frofessional Accountants (IESBA Code’} (including international independance standards ) togathar
with the cthical requiremenis that ore relevant 1o our awdil of the Company's fingneinl stalements in
tho SBiate of United Arabk Emirets and we have fulfillad cur other ethical responsibilities in accordance

with these reguiraments and the [ESBA Code, We beligve thal the audit evidence we have cbtained
ie sufficiant and dporopriate to provide s basis for our opinion,

Eey audit matters

Key audil matiers are those matiers that, In our professional judgement. were of most significance in
our audil of the financial siatemenis of lhe currenl year. Thesa matlers were addressed on the
cortext of our audi of the financial siatements as & wholke and in forming our opnion thereon, and we
do not pravide a separale opinion on these matters. We have determined the matter described balow
12 be the key audit matters to be communicated in our repari,

Invesiment property

Invesiment propery represents a Land ovwned by the Company in Umm Al Qameain, The invesiment
propery is stated at fair value.

The imvestment property has been considered as an imporant audil matter for ds materalty and tha
gudt procedures as follows:

1) An evaluation was obtained from an independent evalualor

21 Tha difference between the canrying value and the value after the revaluation has been verified
3}  The diterence between the carrying value of the property and its fair value has been treated

M| Middls Easl Enran Toreer DFHeEs 105, &8 Lmnkn Slss)
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Independent Auditor's Report for Umm Al Qaiwain General Investments Company
for the year ended December 31, 2023 (continued)

Valuation of investment at fair value through other comprahensive incoma (FYTOCI)

The company possezses investment in securities comprised of quoted and unguoted investment

carmied 8l far value through other comprabensive income (FYTOCEH The waluation ol quoted

irvastmenis is amved at by reference to the quoted bid prices in an aclive marked, while ursguoted

irvesimenis were valued based on less active paraliel market prices

Investments at fair value through clher comprehensive income (FYTOSH] are measured at fair value

with gains and logses arising from changes in fair valve recognized in other comprahensive income

and accumulaled in curmulative changes In fair value reserve.

We consider the above investments at fair value through other comprehersive income [FYTOCI) a

kay matter dus o the maleriality of invastments and inconsiglancy and fluctuation in quoted bid

prices in an active marked and tha following are the audil procedures thal we performed

= We obtained the list of all quoted mvestments carriad at FVTOC! and tested it for accuracy.

s We verified the Falr market values of ail quoted invesiments with quoted active bid prices in stock
axchangs in which they are listed.

= ‘We verified changes in fair valve reserve of invastimenis cartied at FVTOCH and aesurmulated in
the cumulative changes in fair value reserve

» We slso azseszed the adequacy of the company’s disciosures n fhe inancial slatamants for tha
re-measurement of guoted irvestments carried at FVTOCT and s refated changes in fair value,

= Tha fair value of unquoted investments has been verified and maiched wih prices derived from
parallai market,

Other information

Managemenl ks responsible for the other information, Other information consists of information
incledad in the company's report of 2023, other than the firancial statements and our auditors’ repord
thereon, We obtained the repord of the Board of Directors, pricr i the daie of our awdilars” report.

Our apinion on the financial stalements does nol cover the other information and we do nol exprass
any form of assurance conclusion therson.

In comnection wilh our audil of the fingncial statemeants, ow responsibility s to read other information
identified above and, in doing 5o, considar whethar the ather nformation is maleriakly moonsslent
wilh the financial statements of our knowledge obfained In 1he sudit, or otherwise appears 1o he
malerially misstaied. , based on thae work we have paformed, we conclude that there s a material

statement of this other Information, we are required 1o repon that facl. We have nothing to repor In
this regard.

Responsibiliies of managemont for the financial statements

Management Is responsgible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statemerts in
accordance with IFRSs and applicable. provisions of Qatar Commercial Campanies™ Law, and for
=uch mlernal control as management dalermines |5 necessary o enable the preparation of financial
statemenis that are free from material msstalement, whethar due to frawd or error.

In preparing tha financial statemants, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s abiity
(0 condinue as a going concern, disclosing, s applicable, matters related 10 going concern and using
the going concem basis of accounling unless managament aithar intends 1o Fuidate he Tompany o
o cease operations, of has no reakstic alternative but 1o do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obiain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial statemants as a whaole
are froe from malerial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 10 Issue an auditor's repor
fhat includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of asswrance, bul is nol a guaraniee

that.an audil condected in accordance with 1348 will alvays delect a material misstatement when i
exists

Mizstalements can orise from froud or eror and considered malerial f individually er in the aggregate,
they could ressonably be expected fo infiuence the economic decigions of usars laken o the bags of
these financial staterments
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As parl of an audil In accordance wilth 15As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the awdit. We also:

= ldeniify and assass the risks of matarial misstatemeant of the financial statemenis, whether dus
o frawd or ermor, design and perdorm audit procedures responsive 1o those nsks, and oblain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our opinion. The rizk of
not delecting & matarial misstatement resulting from frawd is higher than for cne resulling from
arror, &5 fraud may involve collusion, forgary, mientional omizsions, misrepresentalions, or the
owernide of internal control.

=  Obtain an undemstanding of Internal contral relevant te the audit in order to design audi
procedures thal are apprapriata in the circumstances, bul not for the purpase of axpressing an
opinian an the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polizies used and 1he reagonablenass of sceounting
estimalas and ralated disclosures made by managamant

= Conclude on the appropriatensss of managements use of the going concem basis of
accounting and based on the audil evidence oblained, whathor a malerial unceralnty exists
related to evenis or conditions that may cast sipnificant daubt on the Company's atility o
continue s a going concern, If we conciude that a material uncertainty exisis, we are reguired
to draw attention in our auditor's report 1o the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
it such disciosures are madequate, to modify our opinion, Qur conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obfained up 1o the dale of our auditor’s reporl. Howewer, future avents or
condilions may cause the Company {0 cease o coniinue as a going concern,

=  Ewvaluate the overall presentalion, struclure and content of the financial sialements, including
the disclosunes, and whether the firancial statements represant tha underlyving transactions amd
events in a manner thal achieves fair preseniation,

e communicate with the manapement regarding, among ather maliess, the planred scope 2nd tming

of the audil and significant audit indings. mchuding amy significant deficiencies in nlemal controd thal we
Eantify during cur audit

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

As required by UAE Faderal Law No. (32) of 2021 wa repar that

1. ‘We have obfained all the informaticn and explanation we considered recessary for our audit,

2. The lMinancial stalements comply, in all malerial respect with he applicable provisions of UAE
Faderal Law MNo, (32) of 2021 and the Aricles of Association of the Company

3. The Company has maintaired propar books of sccounts.

4. The financial information included In the Directors’ repor 15 consistent wiih the books of account
of the Company.
8. Transactorns and term with relaled parties disclosed in Note 21
g, Investments and shares purchased by the Company dunng the current year disclosed in Note §6.
7. The Social Contribution made during the vear disclosed in Note 22
£, Baszed on the information and explanation that has been made available o us nothing came 1o
pur attention which causes us 1o believe thal the Company has contravened during the financial
yvear ended December 31, 2023 any of the applicable provisions of UAE Federal Law Mo, (22)
of 2021 or the Articles of Association of the Company which would have a malerial effect on the
Company's aclivilies or on is financial position for the year,
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Middle East

itor's Repo

The Shareholders

Limim Al Qaiwaln General Investments Company
Public Sharchalding Company

Umm Al Gaiwain - United Arab Emirates

Repor on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinicn

We have audiled the accompanying financial statements of Umm Al Qaiwain General Investments
Company {ihe "Campany”) which comprisa the statement of financial postion as at December 31,
2023 and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changas in
shareholdar's equity and stalement of cash flows for the yvear then ended and rotes Lo the financial
statemants, including material accounting policy information and other explanatory information,

In our opinicn, the financial statements present fairly, In all material respects, the financial pasition af
the Company-as at December 31, 2023, its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
than ended in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for opinion

¥ie conducled our audit in accondance with Intematonal Standards on Audiing (15As5). Our
responsibilties under those standards are lurther described in he “Audilors Responsibililies for the
Audit of the Financial Stalements” section of our repor. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Inlemational Ethics Slandards. Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for
Frofessional Accountants (IESBA Code’} (including international independance standards ) togathar
with the cthical requiremenis that ore relevant 1o our awdil of the Company's fingneinl stalements in
tho SBiate of United Arabk Emirets and we have fulfillad cur other ethical responsibilities in accordance

with these reguiraments and the [ESBA Code, We beligve thal the audit evidence we have cbtained
ie sufficiant and dporopriate to provide s basis for our opinion,

Eey audit matters

Key audil matiers are those matiers that, In our professional judgement. were of most significance in
our audil of the financial siatemenis of lhe currenl year. Thesa matlers were addressed on the
cortext of our audi of the financial siatements as & wholke and in forming our opnion thereon, and we
do not pravide a separale opinion on these matters. We have determined the matter described balow
12 be the key audit matters to be communicated in our repari,

Invesiment property

Invesiment propery represents a Land ovwned by the Company in Umm Al Qameain, The invesiment
propery is stated at fair value.

The imvestment property has been considered as an imporant audil matter for ds materalty and tha
gudt procedures as follows:

1) An evaluation was obtained from an independent evalualor

21 Tha difference between the canrying value and the value after the revaluation has been verified
3}  The diterence between the carrying value of the property and its fair value has been treated
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Middle Easr
Independent Auditor's Report for Umm Al Qaiwain General Investments Company
for the year ended December 31, 2023 (continued)

Valuation of investment at fair value through other comprahensive incoma (FYTOCI)

The company possezses investment in securities comprised of quoted and unguoted investment

carmied 8l far value through other comprabensive income (FYTOCEH The waluation ol quoted

irvastmenis is amved at by reference to the quoted bid prices in an aclive marked, while ursguoted

irvesimenis were valued based on less active paraliel market prices

Investments at fair value through clher comprehensive income (FYTOSH] are measured at fair value

with gains and logses arising from changes in fair valve recognized in other comprahensive income

and accumulaled in curmulative changes In fair value reserve.

We consider the above investments at fair value through other comprehersive income [FYTOCI) a

kay matter dus o the maleriality of invastments and inconsiglancy and fluctuation in quoted bid

prices in an active marked and tha following are the audil procedures thal we performed

= We obtained the list of all quoted mvestments carriad at FVTOC! and tested it for accuracy.

s We verified the Falr market values of ail quoted invesiments with quoted active bid prices in stock
axchangs in which they are listed.

= ‘We verified changes in fair valve reserve of invastimenis cartied at FVTOCH and aesurmulated in
the cumulative changes in fair value reserve

» We slso azseszed the adequacy of the company’s disciosures n fhe inancial slatamants for tha
re-measurement of guoted irvestments carried at FVTOCT and s refated changes in fair value,

= Tha fair value of unquoted investments has been verified and maiched wih prices derived from
parallai market,

Other information

Managemenl ks responsible for the other information, Other information consists of information
incledad in the company's report of 2023, other than the firancial statements and our auditors’ repord
thereon, We obtained the repord of the Board of Directors, pricr i the daie of our awdilars” report.

Our apinion on the financial stalements does nol cover the other information and we do nol exprass
any form of assurance conclusion therson.

In comnection wilh our audil of the fingncial statemeants, ow responsibility s to read other information
identified above and, in doing 5o, considar whethar the ather nformation is maleriakly moonsslent
wilh the financial statements of our knowledge obfained In 1he sudit, or otherwise appears 1o he
malerially misstaied. , based on thae work we have paformed, we conclude that there s a material

statement of this other Information, we are required 1o repon that facl. We have nothing to repor In
this regard.

Responsibiliies of managemont for the financial statements

Management Is responsgible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statemerts in
accordance with IFRSs and applicable. provisions of Qatar Commercial Campanies™ Law, and for
=uch mlernal control as management dalermines |5 necessary o enable the preparation of financial
statemenis that are free from material msstalement, whethar due to frawd or error.

In preparing tha financial statemants, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s abiity
(0 condinue as a going concern, disclosing, s applicable, matters related 10 going concern and using
the going concem basis of accounling unless managament aithar intends 1o Fuidate he Tompany o
o cease operations, of has no reakstic alternative but 1o do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obiain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial statemants as a whaole
are froe from malerial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 10 Issue an auditor's repor
fhat includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of asswrance, bul is nol a guaraniee

that.an audil condected in accordance with 1348 will alvays delect a material misstatement when i
exists

Mizstalements can orise from froud or eror and considered malerial f individually er in the aggregate,
they could ressonably be expected fo infiuence the economic decigions of usars laken o the bags of
these financial staterments

R Mk East Sah Tnwes, OMos A0 AL Amona. Siwe
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for th& '|.raar andar.‘l D aml:rﬂr 31, 2023 {conti

As parl of an audil In accordance wilth 15As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the awdit. We also:

= ldeniify and assass the risks of matarial misstatemeant of the financial statemenis, whether dus
o frawd or ermor, design and perdorm audit procedures responsive 1o those nsks, and oblain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our opinion. The rizk of
not delecting & matarial misstatement resulting from frawd is higher than for cne resulling from
arror, &5 fraud may involve collusion, forgary, mientional omizsions, misrepresentalions, or the
owernide of internal control.

=  Obtain an undemstanding of Internal contral relevant te the audit in order to design audi
procedures thal are apprapriata in the circumstances, bul not for the purpase of axpressing an
opinian an the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polizies used and 1he reagonablenass of sceounting
estimalas and ralated disclosures made by managamant

= Conclude on the appropriatensss of managements use of the going concem basis of
accounting and based on the audil evidence oblained, whathor a malerial unceralnty exists
related to evenis or conditions that may cast sipnificant daubt on the Company's atility o
continue s a going concern, If we conciude that a material uncertainty exisis, we are reguired
to draw attention in our auditor's report 1o the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
it such disciosures are madequate, to modify our opinion, Qur conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obfained up 1o the dale of our auditor’s reporl. Howewer, future avents or
condilions may cause the Company {0 cease o coniinue as a going concern,

=  Ewvaluate the overall presentalion, struclure and content of the financial sialements, including
the disclosunes, and whether the firancial statements represant tha underlyving transactions amd
events in a manner thal achieves fair preseniation,

e communicate with the manapement regarding, among ather maliess, the planred scope 2nd tming

of the audil and significant audit indings. mchuding amy significant deficiencies in nlemal controd thal we
Eantify during cur audit

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

As required by UAE Faderal Law No. (32) of 2021 wa repar that

1. ‘We have obfained all the informaticn and explanation we considered recessary for our audit,

2. The lMinancial stalements comply, in all malerial respect with he applicable provisions of UAE
Faderal Law MNo, (32) of 2021 and the Aricles of Association of the Company

3. The Company has maintaired propar books of sccounts.

4. The financial information included In the Directors’ repor 15 consistent wiih the books of account
of the Company.
8. Transactorns and term with relaled parties disclosed in Note 21
g, Investments and shares purchased by the Company dunng the current year disclosed in Note §6.
7. The Social Contribution made during the vear disclosed in Note 22
£, Baszed on the information and explanation that has been made available o us nothing came 1o
pur attention which causes us 1o believe thal the Company has contravened during the financial
yvear ended December 31, 2023 any of the applicable provisions of UAE Federal Law Mo, (22)
of 2021 or the Articles of Association of the Company which would have a malerial effect on the
Company's aclivilies or on is financial position for the year,
'd--_-'? | i
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UMM AL QAIWAIN GENERAL INVESTMENTS COMPANY P.S.C.

PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

UMM AL QAIWAIN - UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023

{All amaunts are in LA E. Dirham})

Eunibit - A

ASEETS

Mon-currant assets

Investment propery

Investments at fair valus through othier
Comprahensive Income (FYTOC

Total nen-current assats

Current assets

Invastments st fair value threugh profit or loes
{FVTFL)

apcourts and cther recaivanies

Cash and cash aguvalents

Tatal cumenl assels

Total sesats

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AMD LIABILITIES
Sharaholders” equity

Share capilsl

Legal reserva

Invesiments revaluation reserve-PYTOCH

Lands revaluation resenve
Retained sarnings
Tetal sharaholders” equity

Non-=currant liabilities
Prowvision for mdeminity

Total non-current abilitiss
Current liabilities

Accounts and other payaebles
Bank cwerdraft

Total cierment Habdlitles

Tota liabilities

Total shareholder's equity and Habilitios

hiotes

E{A)

E {8}

G4

W)
8(C)
10

1

12

Decembar 31, Decamber 3,
2023 2022

213,426,340 213,426 340
196,820,025 218,773,187
41112-1&..3;!; 432198 807
284 843 355 251, 805 619
419,696 243235
3,418, B68 4 485 871
268,752,933 296,614,726
808,999,208 E08,814 233
363,000,000 383,000,000
52,548, TG4 49,652 073
(63,821,082) {67 526,842)
179,588,666 179,586 458
79,206, T8 4,629,110
€10,521,083 299,741,001
5&7, 340 TET 831
567,340 TET 831
45,133,795 ol.o81.632
42777110 37,723,759
87,910,906 88,305 401
BB ATE 245 89,073,232
698,999,208 668,614,233

—=p

Tes thm hast of our knorededigs the fnancial statement fairly present, in all materal respects, the financial position,
results of aperation and cash Sow of e company as of and for the vesr ended 31 Decernber 3023

S

EH[EM ABDULLA SALEM AL HOSAMI

CHAIRMAN

..:::3-:_:{?_

—t

AHMAD SULTAN ESSA AL JABER
DEFUTY CHAIRMAN

The accompanying nofes ane an Inkegral part of (hese financisl satements.



Exhibit — B-1
UMM AL QAIWAIN GENERAL INVESTMENTS COMPANY P.S.C.
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
UMM AL QAIWAIN - UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023
(All amounts are in U.A.E. Dirham)

December 31, December 31,
Notes 2023 2022

Revenues
Profit from investment in shares 13 28,680,381 41,883,281
Changes in fair value of investment at FVTPL 6 (B) 6,457,689 15,260,339
Other income - 4,370
Total revenues 35,138,070 57,147,990
Expenses and other charges
Finance costs 3,647,480 2,930,034
General and administration expenses 14 4,523,726 4,738,361
Total expenses and other charges (8,171,206) (7,668,395)
Net profit for the year 26,966,864 49,479,595
Basic earnings per share 15 0.074 0.136

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Exhibit — B-2
UMM AL QAIWAIN GENERAL INVESTMENTS COMPANY P.S.C.
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
UMM AL QAIWAIN - UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023
(All amounts are in U.A.E. Dirham)

December 31, December 31,
Notes 2023 2022

Net profit for the year 26,966,864 49,479,595
Other comprehensive income for the year
Changes in fair value of investments at FVTOCI 6 (A) 5,556,339 (10,134,615)
Profit from sale of investments at FVTOCI 1,386,849 3,577,089
Land revalution - (117,499,200)
Total other comprehensive income (loss) 6.943 188 (124,056,726)
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year 33,910,052 (74,577,131)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



UMM AL QAIWAIN GENERAL INVESTMENTS COMPANY P.S.C.
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
UMM AL QAIWAIN - UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

Exhibit - C

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023
(All amounts are in U.A.E. Dirham)

Balance at December 31, 2021

Net profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Land Revaluation -Note (5)

Total comprehensive income for the year

Dividends distribution

Board of director’'s remuneration
Transfer to retained earnings on sale of
investment at FVTOCI

Transfer to legal reserve

Balance at December 31, 2022

Net profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Dividends distribution

Board of director’'s remuneration
Transfer to retained earnings on sale of
investment at FVTOCI

Transfer to legal reserve

Balance at December 31, 2023

Investments
revaluation Land
Share Legal reserve- revaluation Retained
capital reserve FVTOCI reserve earnings Total
363,000,000 44,904,118 (62,165,969) 297,085,855 54,624,128 697,448,132
- - - - 49,479,595 49,479,595
- - (10,134,615) - 3,577,089 (6,557,526)
- - - (117,499,200) - (117,499,200)
- - (10,134,615) (117,499,200) 53,056,684  (74,577,131)
- - - - (21,780,000) (21,780,000)
- - - - (1,350,000) (1,350,000)
- - 4,773,742 - (4,773,742) -
- 4,947,960 - - (4,947,960) -
363,000,000 49,852,078 (67,526,842) 179,586,655 74,829,110 599,741,001
- - - 26,966,864 26,966,864
- - 5,556,339 - 1,386,849 6,943,188
- - 5,556,339 - 28,353,713 33,910,052
- - - - (21,780,000) (21,780,000)
- - - - (1,350,000) (1,350,000)
- - (1,850,589) - 1,850,589 -
- 2,696,686 - - (2,696,686) -
363,000,000 52,548,764 (63,821,092) 179,586,655 79,206,726 610,521,053

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit - D

Cash flows from operating activities

Net profit for the year

Adjustment for: -

Provision for staff indemnity

Profit from investment in shares

Changes in fair value of investments at FVTPL
Finance cost

Bank interest

Operating (loss) before working capital changes

Accounts and other receivables
Accounts and other payables

Cash (used in) operating activities

Finance cost paid

Net movement in investment in shares

Proceeds from investments sale and dividends received
Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Bank interest received

Net cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Paid to shareholders

Board of Directors’ remuneration paid
Bank overdraft

Net cash flows (used in) financing activities

Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022
26,966,864 49,479,595
(200,491) 20,617
(28,680,381) (41,883,281)
(6,457,689) (15,260,339)
3,647,480 2,930,034

- (3,870)

(4,724,217) (4,717,244)
(246,460) 6,391
(1,355) (393,112)
(4,972,032) (5,103,965)
(3,647,480) (2,930,034)
1,029,419 15,357,679
30,067,231 46,750,671
22,477,138 54,074,351

- 3,870

- 3,870

(27,226,482)
(1,350,000)
5,053,341

(1,046,003)
4,465,871

The accompanying notes are in integral part of these financial statements.

(18,313,464)
(1,350,000)
(45,104,033)

(10,689,276 )
15,155,147
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1-

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

LEGAL STATUS AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Umm Al Qaiwain General Investments Company (Formerly Umm Al Qaiwain Cement Industries
Company), a Public Shareholding Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”), was
incorporated in Umm Al Qaiwain by Amiri Decree number 2/82 on February 11, 1982.

The Company had obtained approval from the Securities and Commodities Authority to change the
commercial activities and trade name to become Umm Al Qaiwain General Investments Company
P.S.C. and obtained a commercial license number 4558 from the Department of Economic
Development — Umm Al Qaiwain on April 24, 2016.

The company's business activity is development, establishment and management of real estate
enterprises, funds and stocks investments (stocks and bonds), investment, establishment and
institution in commercial enterprises, entertainment, agriculture, tourism, industrial, infrastructure,
educational services, health, energy and ownership and investment of classes and units in the
buildings of the investment areas.

The Company is domiciled at Umm Al Qaiwain, United Arab Emirates.
The registered address of the Company is Umm Al Qaiwain — UAE. P.O.Box 816.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB), interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee.

Basis of measurement
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention.

Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in UAE Dirham (AED) which is the functional and
presentation currency of the Company.

Use of estimates and judgments

In preparing these financial statements, management has made estimates and judgments that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates
are recognized prospectively.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are as follows:

Going concern

Management has made an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
and is satisfied that the Company has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable
future. The Company has been profitable, and it had positive net asset (equity), working capital
and cash flow positions as at the year end. Furthermore, management is not aware of any
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. Therefore, the financial statements continue to be prepared on a going concern
basis.
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2.5

Provision for employees’ end-of-service benefits

Management has measured the Company’s obligation for the post-employment benefits of its
employees based on the provisions of the UAE federal Decree Law no. 33 of 2021 regarding
Employment Regulations. Management does not perform an actuarial valuation as required by
International Accounting Standard (IAS) 19 “Employee Benefits” as it estimates that such valuation
does not result to a significantly different level of provision. The provision is reviewed by
management at the end of each year, and any change to the projected benefit obligation at the
year-end is adjusted in the provision for employees’ end-of-service benefits in the profit or loss.

Other provisions and liabilities
Other provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period only to the extent management
considers it probable that there will be a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or
events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and
guantification of the liability require the application of judgment to existing facts and circumstances,
which can be subject to change.

Adoption of new and revised standards

2.5.1) New and amended IFRS Accounting Standards that are effective for the current year

In the current year, there is a number of amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) that are mandatorily effective for an accounting
period that begins on or after 1 January 2023.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (including the June 2020 and December 2021 Amendments to
IFRS 17)

IFRS 17 outlines a general model, which is modified for insurance contracts with direct
participation features, described as the variable fee approach. The general model is simplified if
certain criteria are met by measuring the liability for remaining coverage using the premium
allocation approach (PAA). The general model uses current assumptions to estimate the amount,
timing and uncertainty of future cash flows and it explicitly measures the cost of that uncertainty. It
takes into account market interest rates and the impact of policyholders’ options and guarantees.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2
Making Materiality Judgements— Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments change the requirements in IAS 1 with regard to disclosure of accounting
policies. The amendments replace all instances of the term ‘significant accounting policies’ with
‘material _accounting policy information’. Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included in an entity's financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general-purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements.

The supporting paragraphs in IAS 1 are also amended to clarify that accounting policy information
that relates to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions is immaterial and need not be
disclosed. Accounting policy information may be material because of the nature of the related
transactions, other events or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not all
accounting policy information relating to material transactions, other events or conditions is itself
material.

The IASB has also developed guidance and examples to explain and demonstrate the application
of the ‘four-step materiality process’ described in IFRS Practice Statement 2.
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¢ Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes—Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction
The amendments introduce a further exception from the initial recognition exemption. Under the
amendments, an entity does not apply the initial recognition exemption for transactions that give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. Depending on the applicable tax law,
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences may arise on initial recognition of an asset and
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting profit nor
taxable profit.
Following the amendments to IAS 12, an entity is required to recognize the related deferred tax
asset and liability, with the recognition of any deferred tax asset being subject to the recoverability
criteria in IAS 12.

e Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes—International Tax Reform—~Pillar Two Model Rules
The IASB amends the scope of IAS 12 to clarify that the Standard applies to income taxes arising
from tax law enacted or substantively enacted to implement the Pillar Two model rules published
by the OECD, including tax law that implements qualified domestic minimum top-up taxes
described in those rules
The amendments introduce a temporary exception to the accounting requirements for
deferred taxes in IAS 12, so that an entity would neither recognize nor disclose information about
deferred tax assets and liabilities related to Pillar Two income taxes.

Following the amendments, the company is required to disclose that it has applied the exception
and to disclose separately its current tax expense (income) related to Pillar Two income taxes.

e Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors—
Definition of Accounting Estimates
The amendments replace the definition of a change in accounting estimates with a definition of
accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. The definition of a change in
accounting estimates was deleted.

2.5.2) New and revised IFRS Accounting Standards in issue but not yet effective
At the date of authorization of these financial statements, the company has not applied the
following new and revised IFRS Accounting Standards that have been issued but are not yet
effective.

. Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 _ Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

o Amendments to IAS 1 _ Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

. Amendments to IAS 1 _ Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

3 Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 _ Supplier Finance Arrangements

. Amendments to IFRS 16 _ Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The directors do not expect that the adoption of the Standards listed above will have a material
impact on the financial statements of the company in future periods.
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¢ Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures—Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture
The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 deal with situations where there is a sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments
state that gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not contain a
business in a transaction with an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity
method, are recognized in the parent's profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
interests in that associate or joint venture.

Similarly, gains and losses resulting from the remeasurement of investments retained in any
former subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using the
equity method) to fair value are recognized in the former parent's profit or loss only to the extent of
the unrelated investors’ interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The effective date of the amendments has yet to be set by the IASB; however, earlier application
of the amendments is permitted.

¢ Amendments to IAS1 Presentation of Financial Statements—Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
The amendments to IAS 1 published in January 2020 affect only the presentation of liabilities as
current or non-current in the statement of financial position and not the amount or timing of
recognition of any asset, liability, income or expenses, or the information disclosed about those
items.
The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-current is based on
rights that are in existence at the end of the reporting period, specify that classification is
unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of a
liability, explain that rights are in existence if covenants are complied with at the end of the
reporting period, and introduce a definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that settlement refers to
the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other assets or services.
The amendments are applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024, with early application permitted. The IASB has aligned the effective date with the 2022
amendments to IAS 1. If an entity applies the 2020 amendments for an earlier period, it is also
required to apply the 2022 amendments early.
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e Amendments to IAS1 Presentation of Financial Statements—Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants
The amendments specify that only covenants that an entity is required to comply with on or before
the end of the reporting period affect the entity's right to defer settlement of a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting date (and therefore must be considered in assessing the
classification of the liability as current or non-current). Such covenants affect whether the right
exists at the end of the reporting period, even if compliance with the covenant is assessed only
after the reporting date (e.g. a covenant based on the entity’s financial position at the reporting
date that is assessed for compliance only after the reporting date).

The IASB also specifies that the right to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting date is not affected if an entity only has to comply with a covenant after the
reporting period. However, if the entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity
complying with covenants within twelve months after the reporting period, an entity discloses
information that enables users of financial statements to understand the risk of the liabilities
becoming repayable within twelve months after the reporting period. This would include information
about the covenants (including the nature of the covenants and when the entity is required to
comply with them), the carrying amount of related liabilities and facts and circumstances, if any,
that indicate that the entity may have difficulties complying with the covenants.

The amendments are applied retrospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024. Earlier application of the amendments is permitted. If an entity applies the
amendments for an earlier period, it is also required to apply the 2020 amendments early.

e Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures—Supplier Finance Arrangements
The amendments add a disclosure objective to IAS 7 stating that an entity is required to disclose
information about its supplier finance arrangements that enables users of financial statements to
assess the effects of those arrangements on the entity's liabilities and cash flows. In addition, IFRS
7 was amended to add supplier finance arrangements as an example within the requirements to
disclose information about an entity's exposure to concentration of liquidity risk.

The term ‘supplier finance arrangements’ is not defined. Instead, the amendments describe the
characteristics of an arrangement for which an entity would be required to provide the information.
To meet the disclosure objective, an entity will be required to disclose in aggregate for its supplier
finance arrangements:

e The terms and conditions of the arrangements

e The carrying amount, and associated line items presented in the entity's statement of financial
position, of the liabilities that are part of the arrangements

e The carrying amount, and associated line items for which the suppliers have already received
payment from the finance providers

¢ Ranges of payment due dates for both those financial liabilities that are part of a supplier finance
arrangement and comparable trade payables that are not part of a supplier finance arrangement

¢ Liquidity risk information
The amendments, which contain specific transition reliefs for the first annual reporting period in
which an entity applies the amendments, are applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2024. Earlier application is permitted.



(6)

UMM AL QAIWAIN GENERAL INVESTMENTS COMPANY P.S.C.
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
UMM AL QAIWAIN - UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023
(All amounts are in U.A.E. Dirham)

3-2

Amendment to IFRS 16 Leases—Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The amendments to IFRS 16 add subsequent measurement requirements for sale and leaseback
transactions that satisfy the requirements in IFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale. The
amendments require the seller-lessee to determine ‘lease payments’ or ‘revised lease payments’
such that the seller-lessee does not recognize a gain or loss that relates to the right of use retained
by the seller-lessee, after the commencement date.

The amendments do not affect the gain or loss recognized by the seller-lessee relating to the
partial or full termination of a lease. Without these new requirements, a seller-lessee may have
recognized a gain on the right of use it retains solely because of a remeasurement of the lease
liability (for example, following a lease modification or change in the lease term) applying the
general requirements in IFRS 16. This could have been particularly the case in a leaseback that
includes variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.
Earlier application is permitted.

A seller-lessee applies the amendments retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8 to sale and
leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application, which is defined as the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applied IFRS 16.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
The material accounting policy information used in the financial statement are as follows:

Impairment of non financial assets

At each statement of financial position date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss, if any, being the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of asset's fair value less costs to sell and
the value in use. The asset's fair value is the amount for which that asset could be exchanged
between knowledgeable, willing parties in arm's length transaction. The value in use is the present
value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. An impairment loss is
recognized immediately in the profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but the increased carrying amount due to reversal
should not be more than what the depreciated historical cost would have been if the impairment had
not been recognized in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in
the statement of comprehensive income unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized
immediately in profit or loss.
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Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets ‘at fair
value through profit or loss’ (FVTPL), ‘held-to-maturity’ investments, financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT) and ‘loans and receivables’. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and
derecognized on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets are classified at fair value through profit or loss if it is obtained as "held

-for- trading"”.

In additional to financial reporting purposes, fair values measurements are categorized into three
levels based on the possibility of noting the degree of importance of inputs to the fair value
measurement process in relation to the entire measurement techniques which can be described
as follows:

-First Level inputs:
First level inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in an active market for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can obtain on the measurement date.

-Second level inputs:
Second level inputs are all inputs other than quoted prices included in first level that are
observable for assets or liabilities either directly or indirectly.

-Third level inputs :
Third level inputs are non-observable inputs for assets and liabilities

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income(FVTOCI)

Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income are initially measured at fair
value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income
and added as “cumulative changes in fair value of investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income” under equity. The fair value of these financial assets is its market
value.

When the financial asset is disposed, the related cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the cumulative changes in fair value of investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is reclassified to retained
earnings.

Dividends from investments in securities are recognized in the statement of profits or losses
when the company's right to receive the dividends is established.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss(FVTPL)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with recognition of
any gain or loss arising from a re-measurement in the profits or losses and any dividends or
interests acquired from the financial asset are included in the profits or losses. The fair value is
determined using the income method according to which the discounted cash flow method is
used to determine the present value of expected future economic benefits resulting from
investment ownership unless the impact of the discount is not material.
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Debt instruments carried at amortized cost or at FVTOCI

The Company assesses the classification and measurement of a financial asset based on the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the asset and the Company’s business model for
managing the asset. For an asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or at
FVTOCI, its contractual terms should give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding (SPPI). At initial recognition of a financial
asset, the Company determines whether newly recognized financial assets are part of an
existing business model or whether they reflect the commencement of a new business model.
The Company reassess its business models each reporting period to determine whether the
business models have changed since the preceding period. For the current and prior reporting
period, the Company has not identified a change in its business models.

When a debt instrument measured at FVTOCI is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss. In contrast, for an
equity investment designated as measured at FVTOCI the cumulative gain/loss previously
recognized in OCI is not subsequently to profit or loss but transferred within equity.

Debt instruments that are subsequently measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI are subject
to impairment.

o Reclassification

If the business model under which the Company holds financial assets changes, the financial
assets affected are reclassified. The classification and measurement requirements related to
the new category apply prospectively from the first day of the first reporting period following the
change n business model that results in reclassifying the Company’s financial assets. During
the current financial year and previous accounting period, there was no change in the business
model under which the Company holds financial assets and therefore no reclassifications were
made.

o Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

e Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits where cash equivalents are short term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

e Other receivables

The Company's financial assets fall within the category of "Other receivables". Other
receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Receivables (including trade and other receivables, cash and bank
balances, and balances due from related parties) are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables when the effect of discounting is immaterial.
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Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognize the financial
asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL’ or ‘other financial
liabilities’. Other financial liabilities (including borrowings, trade and other payables and
balances due to related parties) are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method unless when the effect of discounting their future cash flows to their
carrying amounts using the effective interest method is immaterial.

Employees’ end of service benefits

The Company provides for employees’ end of service benefits to its employees that meets or
exceeds the provisions of the UAE Labour Law. The entitlement to these benefits is based
upon the employees’ final salary and length of service, subject to the completion of minimum
service period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of
employment.

In respect of the Emirati employees, the Company makes contributions to the General Pension
and Social Security Authority, which is calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries in
accordance with the respective local laws pertaining to retirement and pensions. The
Company’s share of contribution to these schemes is charged to the profit or loss in the year to
which they relate.

¢ Derecognition of financial liabilities

3-3

3-4

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is
recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been affected.

Provisions

Provisions are present obligations (legal or constructive) resulted from past events, the
settlement of the obligations is probable and the amount of those obligations can be estimated
reliably. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the statement of financial position date, that is, the amount
that the Company would rationally pay to settle the obligation at the statement of financial
position date or to transfer it to a third party.

Provisions are reviewed and adjusted at each statement of financial position date. If outflows, to
settle the provisions, are no longer probable, reverse of the provision is recorded as income.
Provisions are only used for the purpose for which they were originally recognized.
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Investment property

Investment properties are non current assets held either to earn rental income or for capital
appreciation or for both, as well as those held for undetermined future use but not for sale in the
ordinary course of business or use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes .

Investment property is measured initially at cost. The Company determines at each reporting
date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment properties are impaired.
Whenever the carrying amount of an investment property exceeds their recoverable amount, an
impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss . The recoverable amount is the
higher of investment property's fair value less cost to sell and the value in use. The fair value is
determined based on an annual valuation by an independent external valuer.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed off or when they
are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their
disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

Expenses incurred for replacing component of investment properties items, which are accounted
for separately are capitalised, and carrying value of replaced component is written off.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the item of the related investment properties. All other expenses are recognized in
the statement of profit or loss when incurred.

Transfers are made from investment properties to development properties only when there is a
change in use evidenced by commencement of development with a view to sell. Such transfers
are made at the carrying value of the properties at the date of transfer.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations depending on whether some uncertain future
events occur, or they are present obligations but payments are not probable or the amounts
cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements
but are disclosed.

Dividend Distribution
The Company recognizes dividends as a liability in the financial statements in the period in
which the shareholders approve the dividend distribution.

Expenses recognition
Expenses are recognized in profit or loss when a decrease in future economic benefits related to
a decrease in an asset or an increase of a liability has arisen and can be measured reliably.

An expense is recognized immediately in profit or loss when an expenditure produces no future
economic benefits, or when, and to the extent that, future economic benefits do not qualify or
cease to qualify for recognition in the statement of financial position as an asset, such as in the
case of asset impairments.

Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are translated into the functional currency of
the Company at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the year are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. The Company does not have non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the year. Foreign
currency differences are recognized in profit or loss.
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3-10 Revenues
Revenues represent the total value of profits from sale of shares and dividends of invested
shares during the year, net of discounts and returns.
Income from distributed profits is recognized in the profit or loss statement when the right of the
company to receive the distributed profits is established.
4 FINANCIAL RISK
4-1 Capital risks management
The Company use of financial instruments exposes it to financial risks such as credit risk,
Liquidity risks, market risk, foreign currency risk and capital risk.
The Company continuously reviews its risk exposures and takes the necessary procedures to
limit these risks at acceptable levels.
The significant risks that the Company is exposed to are as follows:
a) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to pay an obligation causing
the other party to incur a financial loss.
The financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk
consist principally of receivables on investments.
b) Liquidity risks
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will be unable to meet its cash obligations. The
management of liquidity risks consist of keeping sufficient cash, and arranging financing sources
through enough facilities, managing highly liquid assets, and monitoring liquidity on a yearically
basis by method of future cash flow.
The maturity of liabilities stated below based on the year from the financial position date to the
contractual maturity date. In the case of financial instruments that do not have a contractual
maturity date, the maturity is based on management’s estimate of time year in which the asset
will be collected or disposed and the liability settled.
The following is maturity table for the financial liabilities as of December 31, 2023:
From 3
On Within 3 months to From 1to
demand months 1year 5 years Total
Liabilities
Accounts and other payables - 45,133,795 - - 45,133,795
Bank overdraft 42,777,110 - - - 42,777,110
Total liabilities 42,777,110 45,133,795 - - 87,910,905
The following is maturity table for the financial liabilities as of December 31, 2022:
From 3
On Within 3 months to From 1to
demand months 1lyear 5 years Total
Liabilities
Accounts and other payables - 50,581,632 - - 50,581,632
Bank overdraft 37,723,769 - - - 37,723,769
Total liabilities 37,723,769 50,581,632 - - 88,305,401




(12)

UMM AL QAIWAIN GENERAL INVESTMENTS COMPANY P.S.C.
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
UMM AL QAIWAIN - UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023
(All amounts are in U.A.E. Dirham)

c)

d)

e)

4-2

4-3

4-4

Market risk

Market risk is defined as the risk which causes fluctuation in financial instruments value as a
result of change in market prices. International Financial Reporting Standards require disclosure
of the financial instruments that are exposed to fluctuation in its value as a result of change in its
market prices. The financial instruments that expose the Company to market price fluctuation
risk as at December 31, 2023 comprise of investment in financial assets amounting to AED
481,663,394.

Foreign Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is defined as a risk resulting from the fluctuation in the value of financial
instruments as a result of changes in the foreign currency exchange rate. On the date of the
financial statements, the Company maintained recognized financial instruments which are
exposed to the foreign currency risk that may cause a change in the related cash flow amounts
as a result of the fluctuation of foreign currency exchange rates.

The details of the recognized financial instruments in foreign currencies stated in the attached
statement of financial position as of December 31, 2023 are as follows: -

Type of foreign Carrying value

currency in UAE Dirham

Financial assets — Kuwait KD 55,231,190
Cash at banks — Kuwait KD 2,494,431
Cash at banks — Oman OMR 466,407

Capital risk

Regularly, the Company reviews its capital structure which includes debt and equity securities
and considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of the capital. The
Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximizing the return to shareholders though the optimization of the debt and equity balance.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a
strong capital base in order to support its business and to sustain future development of the
business. Management monitors its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of
economic conditions.

The Company does not have borrowings. It is financed mainly by own equity. The Company’s
capital management policy remained unchanged since the previous year.

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

Fair value measurement

Fair value represents the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at a measurement date. The
Company has not disclosed the fair values of its receivables, bank balances and payables
because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of their fair values.

Offsetting financial assets and liabilities
The Company does not have any financial assets or financial liabilities that are subject to
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements or any similar agreements.
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5- INVESTMENT PROPRTY
Investment property is a Land owned by the Company with an area of 10,671,317 square feet.
Investment property was revaluted according to an independent valuator on 17 January 2024.

The movement of the Investment property during the year was as follows:

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022
Balance at 1 January 213,426,340 330,925,540
Changes in fair value -Exibit C - (117,499,200)
213,426,340 213,426,340
6- INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES
A- Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Quoted 195,055,461 216,921,850
Unquoted 1,764,564 1,851,317
196,820,025 218,773,167

The investments distributed according to the geographical location are as follows:

Quoted
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
In UAE 173,047,839 192,916,422
In GCC countries 22,007,622 24,005,428
195,055,461 216,921,850

Unguoted
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
In GCC countries 1,764,564 1,851,317
1,764,564 1,851,317
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The transactions during the year over these investments are as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
Balance at January 1 218,773,167 261,020,220
Net movement during the year (27,509,481) (32,112,438)

Changes in investment revaluation 5,556,339

(10,134,615)

The investments above include shares amounting of AED 93,948,487 as securities against bank
facilities granted to the Company

B- Investments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

All investments through profit or loss are quoted and distributed according to the geographical
location as follows:

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022
In UAE 253,384,365 217,633,864
In GCC countries 31,459,004 34,271,755
284,843,369 251,905,619

The transactions during the year over these investments as follows:

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022
Balance at January 1 251,905,619 219,890,521
Net movement during the year 26,480,061 16,754,759
Changes in investment revaluation 6,457,689 15,260,339
284,843,369 251,905,619

7- ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Cash balance with brokers 441,721 91,736
Due from the staff 21,150 100,300
Bank guarantees 1,590 1,590
Others 25,235 49,610
489,696 243,236
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8-

b)

c)

10-

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Cash in hand 27,986 26,568
Cash at banks - UAE 431,044 118,684
Cash at banks - Kuwait 2,494,431 3,930,058
Cash at banks - Oman 466,407 390,561
3,419,868 4,465,871

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Capital:
The Company’s Capital as shown in Exhibit A amounting to AED 363,000,000 consists of fully
paid-up 363,000,000 shares of one Dirham per value for each share.

Legal Reserve:

1) In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, 10% of the profit for the year is to
be deducted and retained in legal reserve account and such appropriation shall be
suspended when the reserve balance reaches an amount equal to 50% of the Company’s
paid up capital. Such appropriation will be resumed whenever the reserve balance becomes
less than 50% of the Company’s paid up capital.

2) The movements over legal reserve during the year as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Balance at January 1 49,852,078 44,904,118
Transferred from profit 2,696,686 4,947,960
Balance at end of the year — Exhibit A 52,548,764 49,852,078

Cumulative changes in the fair value of investments at FVTOCI:

Cumulative changes in the fair value of investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income represent accumulated gains and losses arising from the revaluation of financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income.

LANDS REVALUATION RESERVE

The lands revaluation reserve represents the increase or decrease in the value of lands in
previous years resulting from the revaluation of the lands at fair value by independent evaluator
at the end of previous financial years.

In the prior year, the company’s management decided to reclassify the lands into an investment
property.

The movement of the reserve during the year were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Balance at January 1 179,586,655 297,085,855
Decrease during the year - (117,499,200)
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11-

12-

13-

14-

PROVISION FOR INDEMNITY

The movements over this item during the year are as follows:

Balance at January 1
Additions during the year
Paid during the year

BANK OVERDRAFT

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022
767,831 747,214
93,308 20,617
(293,799) -
567,340 767,831

The bank overdraft as shown in Exhibit A represents the withdrawn overdraft balances from
bank facilities granted to the Company from local banks in the United Arab Emirates against

garantees of securities amount of AED 93,948,487.

PROFIT FROM INVESTMENT IN SHARES

Dividend received
Profit from sale of investment in shares

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Employees salaries and bonus
Air ticket

Rent

Provisions of indemnity
Provisions of Leave expenses
Water and electricity
Profissional fees

Insurance

Licenses and memebrships
Bank chargies

Sundry expenses

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022
21,849,984 24,045,246
6,830,397 17,838,035
28,680,381 41,883,281

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022
2,779,868 2,303,507
22,250 37,244
125,000 90,000
93,308 20,617
125,726 158,191
35,481 15,250
100,000 111,188
90,318 81,513
779,084 670,726
58,941 4,385
313,750 1,245,740
4,523,726 4,738,361
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15- BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Profit for the year 26,966,864 49,479,595
Average number of ordinary share 363,000,000 363,000,000
Basic earnings per share 0.074 0.136
16- CREDIT FACILITIES:
A) As of the attached financial statements date, the credit facilities extended to the Company by the
banks are as follows:
Overdraft AED 270,000,000
Bank guarantee (Labour) AED 1,590

- The overdraft facility has been obtained from local banks in the UAE for the purpose financing
investments and working capital requirements. The interest rate is calculated on the basis of one
to three months EIBOR plus a margin.

- In case of exceeding the agreed upon granted bank facilities or any arrears in the payment of
the obligations, interest shall be imposed on such excess/ overdue liability in addition to the
interest agreed upon above.

b) The above facilities are extended against guaranteed shares.

17- PROPOSED DIVIDENDS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION:

Board of Directors proposed to the general assembly meeting to approve the following

distribution of profit and Board of Directors’ remuneration:

1) Proposed dividends to shareholders 6% of the paid-up capital amounting to AED 21,780,000
(6 % for 2022)

2) Proposed Board of Directors’ remuneration is AED 1,350,000 (AED 1,350,000 for 2022)

The above-mentioned dividend and Board of Directors’ remuneration are subject to shareholder

approval at the Annual General Assembly Meeting and is not recorded as a liability in these

financial statements.

18- GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

The Company’s geographical segments are based on the location of the Company’s assets. The
two geographical segments in which the Company operates comprise of UAE and GCC.

A- Assets distribution

The following table shows the distribution of the Company’s segment assets by geographical

market:
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
In UAE 640,715,534 624,273,378
In GCC countries 58,283,764 64,540,855
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B- Financial assets at fair value distribution
The following table demonstrates financial assets information, the geographical allocation and the nature of activities in which invested:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 Total

1- Investments at FVTOCI December 31, December 31,

UAE GCC UAE GCC 2023 2022

Banking sector 152,250,000 625,747 155,730,000 828,702 152,875,747 156,558,702
Finance and investment sector 12,512,046 8,110,712 8,396,966 8,678,212 20,622,758 17,075,178
Real estate sector - 4,976,634 17,945,099 5,383,132 4,976,634 23,328,231
Industrial sector 214,043 4,410,813 222,359 4,693,575 4,624,856 4,915,934
Service sector - 127,050 2,720,000 142,054 127,050 2,862,054
Telecommunication sector - 5,521,230 - 6,131,070 5,521,230 6,131,070
Insurance sector 8,071,750 - 7,901,998 - 8,071,750 7,901,998

173,047,839 23,772,186 192,916,422 25,856,745 196,820,025 218,773,167
2- Investments at FVTPL
Banking sector 36,540,000 10,629,366 5,370,000 11,735,338 47,169,366 17,105,338
Finance and investment sector 66,638,654 14,433,745 63,445,014 14,700,738 81,072,399 78,145,752
Real estate sector 3,045,000 2,668,868 6,864,901 3,348,807 5,713,868 10,213,708
Industrial sector 16,170,000 1,509,821 14,150,000 1,350,552 17,679,821 15,500,552
Services sector 5,197,440 2,217,204 5,847,120 3,136,320 7,414,644 8,983,440
Energy sector 1,230,000 - 1,160,000 - 1,230,000 1,160,000
Telecommunication sector - - 1,250,000 - - 1,250,000
Insurance sector 118,623,271 - 111,086,829 - 118,623,271 111,086,829
Basic material sector 5,940,000 - 8,460,000 - 5,940,000 8,460,000

253,384,365 31,459,004 217,633,864 34,271,755 284,843,369 251,905,619
Total 426,432,204 55,231,190 410,550,286 60,128,500 481,663,394 470,678,786
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19- BENEFITS OF THE KEY MANAGEMENT AND MANAGERS

The benefits of the key management members and managers are as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
Salaries and management benefits 1,803,170 1,840,504
1,803,170 1,840,504

The amount mentioned above is recognised as an expense during the year.

20- FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. As such, differences can
arise between book values and the fair value estimates. Underlying the definition of fair value is the
presumption that the Company is going concern without any attention or requirement to materially
curtail the scale of its operation or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped at
three levels of the fair value hierarchy. This Company is determined at the lowest level of significant
inputs used in the measurement of fair value, as follows:

Level one: Prices offered (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level two: Inputs other than quoted prices within Level one that can be observable for assets or
liabilities either directly (ie as prices) or indirectly (ie derived from prices).

Level three: Inputs of assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs).
As at December 31, 2023

Level one Level two Total
Quoted equity investments — FVTPL 284,843,369 - 284,843,369
Quoted equity investments — FVTOCI 195,055,461 - 195,055,461
Unquoted equity investments- FVTOCI - 1,764,564 1,764,564
479,898,830 1,764,564 481,663,394
As at December 31, 2022
Level one Level two Total
Quoted equity investments — FVTPL 251,905,619 - 251,905,619
Quoted equity investments — FVTOCI 216,921,850 - 216,921,850
Unquoted equity investments- FVTOCI - 1,851,317 1,851,317
468,827,469 1,851,317 470,678,786
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21-

22-

24-

26-

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There are no transactions with related parties during the year ended December 31,2023.

SOCIAL CONTRIBUTION
There are no social contributions during the year ended December 31, 2023.
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Contingent liabilities as of the financial statements’ date comprises of bank guarantees amounting to
AED 1,590.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The comparative figures have been reclassified to be consistent with presentation adopted in the
current year.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There were no significant events after the reporting date, which have a bearing on these financial
statements.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 24 February 2024.
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Preface

About the Company

Umm Al Qaiwain General Investments Company — P.S.C (Umm Al Qaiwain Cement
Industries P.5.C - Formerly), was established pursuant 1o the Emin Decree No. 82/2 on
February 11, 1982. The Company was registered at the competent government
authorities in accordance to the applicable in the United Arab Emirates, the Company's
head office and legal address located in Umm Al Qaiwain, United Arab Emirates.

The main permitted purposes of the Company are representad in the following activities:-

= Investment and develop real estate projects and manage the same.

= Imvestment in funds and securities - shares and bonds.

* [nvestment in commercial projects, set up and manage the same,

* [nvestment in tourism projects.

= [nvestment in educational services projects, set up and manage the same.

¥ Governance Repoit Z0Z3
LINBA AL TAIWAIN IENERAL |NVEETMEHTE COMPANY PED Tel: 0716 76A1050 «iim ol dokall Gl lafaill e aal el a9
P Bon: BLG Ui Al Qalssin Fas: 459716 7881070 uusie Jednahll clH1R G

Ueddad Arab Srelrates wawncumae | il gegall &aalall ﬂ:m_nf.:-ljla;l
Email - gicianinaies rat ng spaEmlanne i pig il ol



QIC"

Bal sl il gl g sk pi
LA AL TN T S ERTAL INWEF TWCHTS

First: Statement of procedures taken to
complete the corporate governance

system

during 2023 and method of implementing thereof
Governance's Principles Application
The company is committed to apply best practices as follows:

= The company's ariicles of association have been prepared In accordance with the
provisions of Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 and its amendments according to Federal
Decree Law (32) of 2021 regarding commeraial companies, and the decision of the
Chairman of the Authority's Board of Directors Mo. (3 / RM) of 2020 and No. (6/R.M)
of 2022 regarding the standards of institutional discipline and corporate governance
of public shareholding companies and its modifications.

* Implementing the policies, procedures and decisions issued by the authornty regarding
the standards of institutional discipline and corporate governance of public
shareholding companies, commitment to applying best practices regarding the board
and its committees, dealing transparently with the external auditor, and implementing
the decisions of the general assembly.

* The company disclosed the quarterly and annual financial statements after reviewing
and approving them by the external auditor within the permitted legal period.

* The company’s board members, employees, and auditor adhered to professional
conduct rules, policies, internal controls, and complied with the applicable laws and
regulations.

* The company's website has been updated which includes all of the company's
information www,gic-uaq.ae. to enhance disclosure and transparency, and to offer any
new or substantive decisions, and it is considered one of the means to reach the
shareholder to see all the events directly.
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Second: State the ownership and

transaction of board of directors’
members

their spouses, sons in the company's securities during the year
2023:

Owied Shares as Total
& Mo Maamie Position of Total Sale OB
A 1272023
Chairman;
147068 185 -- a0 126,700
- . (Direct & Indrect
1 Salesn Abdulla Salem Al Hosami Chairman owrership)
Spousa; -- =
Sons 24,516,356 131 468 ‘-I‘TI‘E-EJJ!-'I
Ceputy Chairman: - v ia
2 Anmad Sultan ESsa Al- laber Deputy Chairman | Spaouse: - -
SO -
Al Salerm Company Lid,
Fepresentad by Me f Mohamed Sakern { Managing Director RLEEHE L Q0,26 O
3 Abdulla Al Hosanl)
| Ating Managing 73,000 0 ;
Mohammed Salerm Abduliah Al Hosank it & e Gt - B
: e bMembar
4 MM!MMWHHS&UHM iharaber T - __
Qs < il i E:
Member; -
Fahad Abdul Rahman Saud :
. Almukhatzim i v ™ =
ﬁmbnr: 926,000 1491614
[ Armed Ornar 3alem AlKorbi hermbier Spousa; -- = --
Sons: 21464935 403932
ME’M % P Fad
T Rabhma Maharmmed Eabea Al -Shaemo Wiembar Spouse: — =
Hons; ==
- Eheikh / Abdulaziz Masser Hashed Al Nk 43
Mioasa !
y arnber-- -
g Sarah Hurmui I::::ab:.:f Moharmmed Miarnbat Sl N
Sanfg-- e
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Third: Board Formation

Pursuant to the provisions of Article (19) of the Articles of Assodiation of the Company,
the number of members of the Board of Directors have been determined at nine members
to be elected by the Ordinary General Assembly, The Board of Directors elected at the
Ordinary General Assembly held on Monday, April 10, 2023 acknowledged in its first
meeting in 2023 - after the completion of the election - the composition of the Board
and its Committees and the Intemal Control Department, in accordance with the
Company's Arlicles of Association and Corporate Governance Regulations, as follows:

Below is a detailed statement of the compasition of the Board of Directors as per
the requirements of governance:
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A.  Elected Board of Directors at the ordinary General Assembly meeting in
10/04/2023:
A Their posidons in
N Title Category : " ¥ l:mminl-“al::-r i ] Since
—_— Qualifications Inethiurth ragulatory, of
cainmisrdial positions
\ Deputy Chairman of Gull
Mieadical Projects Cormpany
1+ Safer Ahdulla Mon- i Bachetor of Busimess |
- slam Al Hogani C hairmman Ind ot Fom-axscuiiee v ion hr:en]he:liﬂ:ummlra 15849
ompany.
s Migmines af tha
Hational Caninel — [
Fosrrewr bernder af tha
- Akerioed Sutimn Doputy Han- = e
[Fsxa Al Labar Chairman |Independornt i sgm”i ':':'r"l g .
Passporis in Abu
Blkahii
3 Al Sgem Co.
; hamber of Guif Madical
imited (Reprosented | |\ |  [Bacheir of Commerce Frﬂ!mm;ﬂw—
Mr. Mobammed | "ol 0 depandeny| CYeCUtNE | and Masier of mber of Unice Insurarice i
alem Akdylla Al Fimamcial Managemert Compamy
CHEAR)
Euecutive Manager of Al
- Sheilhy Sowd "
AN . .| Bachetor of Business Saud Company Lid, -
Hqi.d lﬂm Caud M Member |Irdepandent | Mon-eeecutive Abinboitiation ; tive M - of Al i
Gl relagas [Nvestmcnl Coinpany.
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Mambersvhi I athi Thide posilicnm in
Hume Titke CHINGOrY Exp ¥ iﬂmﬂnl-:m Lt ", Siae
Queakificativng Tnthusth requistary, er
Mtesmier and Chief
Ereoutvne Ofloer of Frasimerd Sralst of
{Mavana Inuessments FEC ~gy s General Trading,
Crmerrran of the Donrd of [Canraciing Wik Foreign
Emm-d;:ﬁth:ﬂn: livwesirrmnt Cooparwy
bemiar Sl weamber |Imia i) T widakra [ntermationa
it PERCHN I el of Diectors of Arian |Iestimun Comgang - | 2017
Al-Kumait Npel Dxiace Kimwirit hrdatey of
Company - Membor ol Fitare e fodependent
soverad caher stock Hudget Management
KOTANES in et and | BLdgRts Specidizg
H55
Sl ran isiralenn s
Aoromsning, dual fURE
Urasuweity) - Financisl
anif adveinicirateg
worhs (CHiectos of e
Crifice arf thee Wirpase | Pl of tho Board of
ol Agticdtum and Doreciars of Al Dhabd
Fubierias Al Cnghs | Ieestmens Compay -
E-NHIHI Dhinudi Mo Fum 1072 10 1986 - Marmbier of the Roard of
[FESN "~ i -wms v, Addinistmaive works [ ACH0E 8F Arak indirsncs 20
Irvrls pncierd : : Group (AREE, CRalmman of
L o 1%k Friree: and Aiv
T Bl of DFeCLHe of
Ditarear focom 067 40 by Ennperatun Soood jatnm
156527« Formms 4ar Housing and
[Mamber of BAK Whits | Deemianment n Dbl
Carent Coampany —
farmer Marrbes of
[FAK Poultey B Feeding|
Lo~ Foempr Wemibis
al Mol Meme
Beedging Co.
7 Lakemar
Biohammed Balwra | Mémber |Indepondeed | Mos mmtmw o Scance 2018
Tinarcs
ol Shasms
8 Slkh. / Alhar] i Master ol Heman Fonmnes Membar ol the Sarier ngpsctor of
: of - Rewcrurcms and Beoard of Birectar of Rarking Sumervison ot
(Mo [ashid &i bteembar Miws ]
i Idegercdera | | achelor of Gaess | Emvstesinseance | the Central Bank of the | o
Lt LT E A Cormpacy. Errivaies
Bachalor of Arrs in
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{Public Reletomnt &
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apnfence in Shadjab
Bmurance Company =
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B. Statement of representation of the female in the Board of Directors for the
year 2023:

The percentage of female representation on the Board of Directors for 2023 is 11%,

C. Statement for the following:

1- Total remunerations of the Members of the Board members paid for the year
2022:

Members of the Board of Directors have received an amount of one million and three
hundred fifty thousand dirhams for the year 2022, which was adopted in the General
Assembly held in April 10, 2023

2- Total remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors proposed for the
year 2023 and which are presented at the annual general assembly meeting for
approval:

The Board of Directors proposed in its meeting on 24-02-2023 - based on the
recommendation of the Momination and Remuneration Committee Disbursing
remunerations to members of the Board of Directors for the year ending on December

31, 2023, with a total amount of AED 1,350,000/~ the proposal will be presented at the
annual general meeting for approval.

1- Details of allowances, salaries, or additional fees and their reasons, which a
member of the board of directors received other than committee attendance
allowances:

Mo allowances or salaries were paid for attending the sessions of the committees
emanating from the Council for the fiscal year 2023,

4- Details of the allowances for attending the sessions of the committees
emanating from the board which was paid by the members of the board of
directors for the fiscal year 2023:

Mo allowances or salaries were paid for attending the sessions of the committees
amanating from the Council during the year 2023,
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E- Number of Board of Directors meetings held during the fiscal year 2023 and
the number of personal attendances for all members with an indication of the

members present in the proxy:

The company’s board of directors held four meetings during the year 2023, as

follows:
embere | Saturday 11| Monday 10 | Saturday 21 “mh’cﬁi;ﬁ
March 2023 April 2023 October 2023 2023
He apologized for
not attending with
Mr. Salem an acceptable
Abdulla Salem Al y BRCUSE. y
Hosani Delegated Mr,
Abhmad Sultan
Essa Al Jaber
Mr. Ahmad
Sultan Essa Al Y 3y ]
Jaber
He apologized for
Al Salem Limited not attending with
Co. (Represented
an acceptable
Mohammed ST,
Dalegated Shaikh
Salem Abdulla Al S
Hosani) / Saud Majed bin
Saud Al Qassimi
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Members | SAtUrday 11 | Monday 10April | Saturday21 | Saturday 16

March 2023 2023 Octaber 2023 Decamber 2023
Sheilch / Saud He apologized
/ for not attending
Majed bin Saud i { with an v
Al Qassimi scceptable
EXCLSE.
He apologized for not .

Mr. Fahad attending with an r:re nﬂﬂ;ﬁﬂﬁ;ﬂﬁ
Abdul Rahman J acceptable excuse. J ety 0
aaud Al Delegated Sheikh / Wil
Mukhaizim Abdulaziz Masser patle

Rashid Al Moalla exLse.
Mr. Ahmad
Omar Salem ) N d J
AlKorbi
Mr. Rahmah
Mohammed
Rahmah Al ¥ 2 ¥ 4
Shamsi

Mr. Ahmed
Salem Abdulla | PE/EOStEA M| membership has | His membership | His membership

Salem Al "'h;:]m not been renewed e et Dt has not been
Hosani = renewed renewesd
Sheikh /
Abdulaziz J y
Masser Rashid ¥ v
Al Moalla
Sarah Humaid . 4 ,
Cbald b Y
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F. Number of Beard decisions issued by passing during financial year 2023,

= The company's Board of Directors” decision on Tuesday, May 9, 2023, to approve
the company’s summary interim financial statements for the three manths ending
an March 31, 2023,

= The company's Board of Directors' decision on Tuesday, August 1, 2023, to approve
the company’s summary interim financial statements for the six months ending
June 30, 2023,

= The Company's Board of Directors decided on Monday, September 18, 2023, w0
terminate the services of the Board Secretary due to his retirement and the end of

his employment contract, and to appaint a replacement for him,

Fourth: Board Committees

The Audit Committee

A. "l Sheikh / Saud Majed Bin Saud Al Qasimi, Chairman of the Audit Committee,
acknowledge my responsibility for the committee's system in the company and far my
review of its work mechanism and verification of its effectiveness.

B. The names of the members of the Audit Committes:
1- Sheikh / Saud Majid bin Saud Al Qasimi - Head of the Committee
2- Sheikh / Abdulaziz Nasser Rashid Almoalla - Member

3- Mr, Ahmed Mohamed Mansour Albeba - Member from outside the Board of Directars

Statement of the terms of reference and tasks assigned to the audit committee;

®  Review the company's financial and accounting policies and procedures.

®= Monitor and review the integrity of the company’s financial statements and reports
(quarterly, half-yearly and annual) as part of her regular work during the year and after
the accounts are closed.

® Sefting and implementing the policy of contracting with the external auditor and
submitting reports to the Board of Directors stating the issues that it deems necessary
to take action on, while providing recommendations for the steps necessary to be

taken.
11 Governance Report 2023
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= Reviewing and following up the independence of the external auditor and the extent
of his ohjectivity, and discussing the scope and nature of the audit process and the
extent of its effectiveness in accordance with the approved auditing standards,

= Establish controls that enable company employees to report any possible violations in
financial reports, internal contrel, or other matters in a confidential manner and the
steps 1o conduct independent and fair investigations of these violations.

* Monitor the company's compliance with the rules of professional conduct.

* Follow-up and supervise the insiders’ dealings, if any,

The number of meetings held by the Audit Committee during the year 2023:
The Committee held four meetings, as follows:

sr. Members 11/3/2023 | 8/5/2023 | 1/8/2023 | 21/10/2023
Sheikh Saud Bin Majid Saud Al
1 Fit W ) v -
[Jassimi
heikh lazi i
5 Sheikh Abdulaziz Nasser Rashid . J J 4
Almoalla
3 Mr. Ahmed Mohamed Mansour i J { J
AlBeba {outside the Board)
12 Governance Report 2023
Lisiel AL CUARAATN GENERAL INVESTMENTE COMPRNY P50 TH: 5716 TEH1EEE s i Aol ol aTlulh (up-l ol s
Pl Bax: BLE Umm A Cialwals Fee #0718 TEEIOTD  udls Jegaibll fl BB o

United Arab Emimaine L R il pigall diaainll ﬂ..|.||.|ﬂ ailjlokl
Ermail ;gicBsmralEemElid quiemrainsnetee pigI3Ill 4l



ic>

& _nl-ak |:|I|I_|;|.'|:|.|.|.';|n._.|_gq_.l'ﬂ-'i-l
LIRS AL CatiAI CERETAL IWEITIERTH

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
A. ‘'l / Rahmah Mohammad Rahmah Al Shamsi chairman of the Nomination and

Remuneration Committee, acknowledged my responsibility for the committee system in
the company and far my review of its work mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness.”
B. Names of members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committea:

1. Mr. Rahmah Mohammad Rahmah Al Shamsi - Head of the Committee.

2, Sheikh / Saud bin Majid Saud Al Qasimi - Member,

3, Mr, Ahmed Omar Salem Al-Karbi - Member,

Statement of the powers and tasks entrusted to the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee

= Setting a special policy for candidacy for membership in the Board of Directors and
the Executive Management aimed at taking into account gender diversification within
the formation and encouragement of women through incentive benefits and
programs.

® Organizing and following-up the procedures for nomination for membership in the
Board of Directors in accordance with the applicable laws and reguiations and the
provisions of this decision.

*  Ensuring the independence of the independent members an an aongoing basis.

= Preparing the policy fer granting rewards, benefits, incentives and salaries to the
members of the company's board of directors and employees, and reviewing them
annually, and the committee

" must verify that the rewards and benefits granted to the company's senior executive
management are reasonable and commensurate with the company's performance.

* The annual review of the required skilis requirements appropriate for the membership
of the Board of Directors and preparing a description of the capabilities and
gualifications required for the membership of the Board of Directors, including
determining the time that a member needs to allocate to the work of the Board of
Directors.

* Review the structure of the Board of Directors and submit recommendations regarding
changes that can be made,
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" Determine the company's needs for competencies at the level of senior executive
management and employees and the basis for selecting them,
" Preparing the policy on human resources and training in the company and monitoring
its implementation and reviewing it annually,

C.  Nemination and Remuneration Committee meetings during the year 2023;
The Committee held one meeting, as follows:

Sr. Members 11 March 2023
1 M. Rall'll'l‘liﬂh Mohammed Rahmah Al J
Shamsi
2 | 5heikh / Saud bin Majid Saud Al Qasimi i
3 | Mr. Ahmad Omar Salem AlKorhi W

The supervision and Follow-up Committee of insider's
Transactions

The Audit Committee - in view of its direct interaction with the financial and equity
departments in the Company, and the acquainted ' statements and reports of Abu Dhabi
Securities Exchange and the Kuwait Stock Fxchange - it follows up such transactions, if
any.

A. Insider trading of the company's financial statements in securities during
the year 2023:

There are no transactions for the insider employees of the company in the Abu Dhabi
Securities Exchange.

B. Transactions of the rest of the Company’s employees [non-acquainted):

It was confirmed that ne (non - acquainted] employee of the company’s shares traded
during the year 2023,
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C. Competencies and Duties of the Committee:

* To determine the permanent acquainted of the Company, including members of the
Board of Directors, its employees, executive management, persons aware of the
Company's infarmation permanently or temporarily.

= To follow-up and supervise the transactions and property of acquainted, maintaining
records thereof.

= To prepare a special and comprehensive register for all acquainted, including persons
who may be considered as persons who are temporarily considered acquainted, who
are entitled or have access to the Company's internal information prior to publication.

® To maintain prior and subsequent disclosures register of the acquainted, and follow-
up the balances of acquainted on a manthly basis.

" To notify Securities and Commodities Authority and Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange of
an updated list of acquainted at the beginning of each financial year and any
amendments thereto during the financial year,

= To maintain official declarations of the persons, who are permanently or temporarily
aware of the Company's internal informatian.

= To submit periadic reparts on the acquainted’ transactions to Abu Dhabi Securities
Exchange.

®* To notify all acquainted with the required controls and legal responsibility by
delivering them official declarations,

" To follow-up of the responsible department for 1ssuing notifications of prohibition

periods.

D. Summary of Committee’s Activities Report during 2023:

®  The Committee has reviewed the acquainted 's register and made sure that there are
no transactions made the Company's shares for the members of the Board of
Directors, its employees and all acquainted within the Company in the securities
during 2023, depending on the official statements received from Abu Dhabi Securities
Exchange and Kuwait Stock Exchange, Such official statements confirm the statements
cantained in the records of the Company and the declarations submitted.

®  The Committee has reviewed the statements submitted by the members of the Board
of Directors of the Company and the acquainted concerning their trading or non-
trading in the securities of the Company during 2023,
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* Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange, the Securities and Commodities Authority, the Kuwait
Stock Exchange and the Capital Markets Authority have been provided with a list of
the names of the members of the Board of Directors and the acquainted.

* The Internal Control Department and the Board Secretariat have been informed to
notify the acquainted of the prohibition period, as the Committee made sure that the
Chairman, the members of the Board of Directors and all the acquainted have been
informed about the prohibition of trading in the securities issued by the Company
until the disclosure of the Company's financial statements. The prohibition periods
were (after March 17", June 16", September 16" and December 17™} of 2023,

* The Committee decided to obtain official declarations from the permanent or
temporarily acquainted in order to preserve its confidentiality, and not to misuse,
transfer or cause the transfer thereof directly or indirectly to third parties, assuming
the entire legal responsibility in cacze of breach of this decision,

* To notify all acquainted persons and inform them of the controls related to them and
the legal responsibility resulting from the breach of confidentiality of information, as
described in clause {5) above,

Any other committee or committees approved by the
Board of Directors

There is no other committee or committees.
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G. State the duties and competencies of the Board of Directors made by the member

or executive management during the year 2023 based on the authorization of Board
of Directors:

The Chairman of the Board of Directors, deputy chairman as well as the member of the
Board of Directors shall have the sole right to sign on behalf of the Company, in
accordance with the powers authorized to them by the Board of Directors or any other
member authorized by the Board of Directors in this regard.

According to the above controls, the Managing Director and the General Manager of the
Company shall conduct the daily business of the Company pursuant to the best practices
of governance and the provisions of the Articles of Associations and the powers
authorized to them by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors has authorized the
executive management in the following matters:

» Opening and dosing trading accounts with brokerage companies and signing all
necessary applications for this, including the electronic trading agreement and
issuing investor cards and numbers in all financial markets inside and outside the
United Arab Emirates.

* Receive the username, password, security code, and any other means of protection
related to electronic trading.

Transferring shares from/to the broker/clearing house.

Giving buy and sell orders, receiving order confirmations and signing them.

View account details, request account statements, and reguest the transfer of credit
balances to the company's bank accounts.

= Sign all papers or documents, including confirming the account balance.

H. A statement of the details of transactions carried out with related parties
(stakeholders) with an explanation of the nature of the relationship and type of
transaction:

There are no transactions with related parties.
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Fifth: Organizational structure and
executive management

L. Organizational structure of Umm Al Qaiwain General Investments Company:
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J. Detailed statement to the name of senior executive staff in the company:

Salaries Total
Dat and bonuseas for
Sr. MNaime Position Appoin of ¢ Allowances | 2022 Paid
pointment |  caldin in 2023
2023 (AED) (AED)
Mohammed Salem - mﬁﬂmtm
Abduba Al Hosani T emunera
1 lﬁﬂﬂ'mﬂﬂ:lﬂ Al Managing Director S0, 00 0= of the Board of
Salemn Limited Go.) Directars
mumh-aq'a}
Sheikh | Saoud bin
2 | MasserRashid Al | GeneralManager |  11/07/2016 720,000/ 150,000/
Moalla
3 Tam$uﬂmmm Financial Manager |  10/05/2001 205,101/ 50,000/

There are no other in-kind / material bonuses were identified for the year 2023.
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Sixth: External Auditor

A. About the Auditor of the Company M/s: Rodl Middle East:

The parent company, Rodl and Partner, was established in 1977 in Nuremberg, Germany,
and since then it has expanded to 84 offices in 37 countries, The company provides
integrated solutions for auditing, taxes and business consulting as a leading global
services company, By establishing a new presance in the Gulf region and the Middle East
and North Africa, Rodl Middle East was created in partmership with Hikmat Mekhaimer to
provide the growing region with the aim of providing specialized advice taking into
account the laws of the Middle East to help clients grow their business internationally and
constantly increase their value, The company is headquartered in Kuwait and the regional
office in Dubai. Rodl Middle East supports clients through branches in many countries of

the Gulif Cooperation Council and the countries of the Middle East. A team of specialists
in the company provides a diverse and unigue set of professional services to maximize
the success of their clients using a multidisciplinary approach. Redl Middle East provides
a range of professional product services such as auditing, consulting, transactions, taxes
and external contracting in the GCC region,

B. Fees of the External Auditor during the year 2023:

Emai  owcipenimles ael §e

Audit office Radl Middla tast

Pariner Audit Eyad Samara

The number of years spent as an external Five years

auditor for the company

Total audit fees for the year 2023 inclusive of AED 105,000

1o

Other services provided by the company's Nan

auditor

Fees and costs of other services other than an

audit of the financial statements for the year Man

£0£3
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Mo external auditor other than the company auditor provided any other services during
the year 2023,

C. The reservations made by the company's external auditor that were included in
the interim and annual financial statements for the year 2023.

There are no remarks by the external auditor on the interim and annual lists for the year
2023,

Seventh: Internal Control Regulations

A.  "The Board of Directors acknowladges its full responsibility for the Company's

internal control regulations, and its review and effectiveness”
B. The following is the name, qualification and appointment date of the
Department Manager:

Name: Moora Juma 5aif Bin Swaif Alghfeli
Title: Compliance Officer (Appointment date: 13/06/2022).
Careers:

+ Bachelor of Applied Science in Business Administration (Accounting) from Higher
Colleges of Technology - Sharjah
C.  Work Mechanism of Internal Control:

Umm Al Qaiwain General Investments Company P.5.C has an effective internal audit
department consisting of a professionally qualified manager and an expert. Tt aims to
implement an accurate system to provide and improve the effectiveness ofthe
performance of the department and internal control of the Company for continuous

auditing of the operation results, investigation of financial records, evaluation of internal
control regulations and assist senior management to increase the efficiency of the
Company's operations in detecting the manipulation and monitoring errors in the
Company's financial system.

The Company adopts the implementation of international standards of internal control in
arder to achieve the required objectives efhciently at the lowest economic costs, The

internal control basis intended 1o ensure the following: -
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= Sensibility and compatibility of information and data.

* Extent of compliance with policies. plans. procedures. regulations. laws and
instructions,
The extent of protection of the Company's assets and properties.
The extent of compliance of the activities, processes and programs with the specific
objectives and purposes, and ensure the implementation thereof by the supervisory
authorities as per the specific plans and objectives.

Internal Control Departrment shall develop the annual control plan in coordination with
the managers of the relevant departments or the heads of the other divisions of the
Company.

The Manager of the Internal Control Department shall submit detailed reports 1o the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors on the ewvaluation of the internal control
regulations, showing remarks and proposals to increase the effeciiveness of the internal

contral regulations on a regular basis and when necessary, at any time it desms
appropriate for the purposes of this assessment.

Internal Control Activities in 2023:

Internal Control Committee reviewed nature of the works of all departments “within the
powers authorized to it by the Board of Directors”, which expressed its cooperation with
the Committee by facilitating all means to obtain the information, Such departments also
cooperated with the Committee to verify the regulations in arder to reflect a clear vision
on the work progress and the Company's commitment to the policy developed by the
Board of Directors. It is noted in this regard that the Company did not face any major
problems during 2023,

D. The number of reporis issued by the Intemal Control Department to the
Board of Directors:

Internal Control released four reports during the year 2023,
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Eghth: Violations

A fine imposed by the Capital Markets Authority in Kuwait in the amount of 2,000 Kuwaiti
Dinars has been settled. This amount was reduced from the original fine, which was
initially set at 5,000 Kuwaiti Dinars. The violation pertained to a failure to disclose essential
information in accordance with the rules and timelines of the Kuwait Stock Exchange. The
fine has been paid.

Professional Code of Conduct:

Honesty and ethics of wark are the ideals of the Company and everyone is working an
the continuation of its principles as the culture of the Company. All employees are tully
aware of the Company's professional guidelines and codes of conduct adopted by the
Company and to implement therecf. They are responsible for ensuring that all the
Company's businesses are carried out in compliance with these rules.

Ninth: Cash and In-Kind Contributions

Environmental pollicy applied by the Company toward the environment and society:
All employees of the Company shall deal with environmental issues professionally. In
order to reach a society with little environmental impact, the Company implements the
best environmental practices as per the laws and regulations. In addition, all employees
of the Company observe the following rules in order to protect the environment, and the
health and safety of members of society:

= Improve the environmental awareness among all employees.

" Contunuous improvement of cur environmental performance,

* Copoperate with all relevant entities to avoid envirenmental risks.

" Communicate seriously with stakeholders to get constructive feadback.

Cash and in-kind contributions:
There are no cash or in-kind contributions from the company during the year 2023,
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A. Statement of the share's price of Umm Al Qaiwain General Investments
Company P.5.C in Abu Dhabl Securities Exchange (closing price, highest price,
lowest price) at the end of each month during the financial year 2023:

Highest Lowest
Month Opening Price Bdee Closing

1-2023 1.180 1.180 1.180 1.18

4-2023 1.07 123 1.07 1.23

5-2023 1.1 1.12 1.1 1.12

7-2023 1.02 1.0 1.02 1.02

B-2023 1.08 1.25 1.08 125

9-2023 1.26 1.62 1.00 1.07

m—

10-2023 1.05 1.30 1.04 1.15

11-2023 1.08 1.15 1.04 115

12-2023 1.04 1.14 1.04 1.10
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B.  Statement of the comparative performance of the Company's shares with
the sector index to which the Company belongs during 2023:

C. Statement of the distribution of shareholders' ownership in Umm Al
Quwain General Investments Company as on December 31, 2023:
Sharehold

.ratln_g . The percentage of shares held %

Individuals Companies | Government Total

Local 62.16 9.54 0.28 1198

Arab 1803 439 0.00 2242

Foraigner 0.10 551 0.00 561

Total 80.29 19.43 0.28 100

a5
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D.  Statement of the shareholders owning 5% or more of the Company's capital,
as of 31/12/2023, as per the below table:

Mumber of percentage of
Sr. Mame Owned owned shares in the
Shares capital (%)

1* | Salem Abdullah Salern 107,068,185 295

2% | FAB Private Bank (Suisse) SA 20,000,000 5.51

3 | Majed Ahmed Omar Salem Al Korbi 20,784, 375 573

4 | Mohamed Ahmed Saeed Al Qassimi | 19,265439 5.31

Total 166,062,592 46.04

*The group associated with the Chairman of the Board of Directors Mr. Salem Abdulla
Salem Al Hosani, who owns 123068185 shares, representing 33.90% (direct and

inclirect].

o Governance Report 2023
LINBA AL CLATVAIN GEREFAL INVESTMENTE DOMPANY FE.0 Tel:  +§71 6 7681999 Adia gp il Entll ol aTTall g4l ol d5pd
P Bagoi | 16 Lrres A1 Qarenin Faai 4871 0 TERLOTO  oudli dgu-gill gh LR
Unned Aras E=rmbn e ] i) AR el pagall daslall Egyall od jhed]

Email ; glefwrnica s fil. mi

pl@arimeanatan | elaEsal syl



QIC>

I T ,.:,.T_l.l;l.IJ u_lg__l.ilpl
LR AL DeraaR GLREFAL FVEETVERMTE

E Statement of shareholders’ distribution according to the size of ownership,
as of 31/12/2023, as per the below table:

percentage of
<r i e MNumbers of Number of owned shares
1 P shares Owned Shares in the capital
(%e)
1 Less than 50,000 5,569 20,783,183 573
From 50,000 to
2 500,000 268 38,897,000 10.72
From 500,000 1o
3 5 000,000 47 60,238,319 16.59
4 | Mare than 5,000,000 13 243081498 6696
Total 5.897 363,000,000 100

F. A statement of the measures taken regarding investor relations controls:

The Investor Relations page aims to enhance communication channels and encourage the
exchange of information in order to enable investors and financial analysts to reach clear
visions according to the highest standards of transparency and reliability and provide an
opportunity to obtain the latest information that cenfirms the extent of commitrment to
transparency and the application of institutional discipline standards, where he is
responsible for managing investor relations. Mr. / Ashraf Rady, Acting Director of [nvestor

Relations.
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Contacts:

Maobile No.: +971508838743

Phone number; +97167681999

Fax: +97167681070

Email: gic@emirates.net.ae

The link for the investor relations page on the company’s website:
(http/ /www qic-uan.ae/en/category/finvestors-relations)

G. Subject requires a special decision:

No special decisions were submitted in the General Assembly during 2023,
H.  Rapporteur of the Board of Directors’ Meetings:

MName: Mrs. Mary Nashed Asaad

The appointment date at the company: January 2, 1997

The appointment date as a Board Secretary: September 18, 2023
Careers and experience:

= Holds a university degree.
* Has over 20 years of experience in board meetings.

L Significant events encountered by Umm Al Quwain General Investment
Company P.5.C during 2023:

There are no significant events that occurred with the company during the year 2023,

i | A statement of the transactions that the company made with related parties
during the year 2023, which are equal to 5% or more of the company’s capital.

There are no deals carried out by the company with related parties.
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& Percentage of Emiratization at the Company by the end of the years 2021,

2022, and 2023:
Emiratization Percentage | Emiratization Percentage | Emiratization Percentage
2021 2022 2023
20% 20% 20%,

L. Innovative and initiatives projects:

There are no innovative and initiatives projects carried out by the company or being

developed during the year 2023,

Allah is the Arbiter of Success,
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INTRODUCTION SHEEH

This report, prepared by Umm Al Qaiwain General Investment Company p.s.c (the Company), provides
an overview of the important sustainability management initiatives undertaken by the company.

In compliance with the disclosure guidelines set by the Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange regarding
disclosure related to the environment, society and governance of listed companies, this report for Umm
Al Qaiwain general Investments in the United Arab Emirates reveals the period from January 1, 2023 until
December 31, 2023.

Our report focuses on supporting the UAE vision and international goals to provide a sustainable
business environment and urge the business community to adopt social sustainability practices, as well
as raise standards of governance.

e e e e s SUSTAINABILITY e e e
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THE COMPANY

Umm Al Quwain General Investment Company is one of the investment companies listed on the Abu Dhabi
market that seeks to develop its investment activities.

Umm Al Qaiwain General Investment Company PJSC (previously Umm Al Quwain Cement Industries
Company PJSC) was established by Emiri Decree No. 2/82 issued on February 11, 1982 and on April 18,
2015 the Ordinary General Assembly decided to stop the production and sale of cement and focus
exclusively on investment operations and work on amending the activity, the trade name and the articles of
association. On March 19, 2016, the company’s general assembly was held and a special decision was
issued to amend the articles of the company’s articles of association to convert it into an investment
company in accordance with Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 regarding commercial companies, provided that
the approval of the competent authorities is obtained in this regard. The company obtained approvals from
the Securities and Commodities Authority to amend the activity and the trade name to become Umm Al
Quwain Public Investments Company PJSC. It also obtained the commercial license from the Department
of Economic Development - Umm Al Quwain.
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OUR VISION

We look forward to achieving a distinguished investment climate by
achieving and implementing sustainability, in line with the vision of the
United Arab Emirates to achieve global leadership in the field of
sustainability, = best business practices, knowledge and
entrepreneurship. We seek to be one of the leading companies in the
field of investments in the United Arab Emirates through the application

of best practices in the field of sustainability and social responsibility.

OUR STRATEGY ek ks s s A e b e s

Commitment to achieving sustainability in operational processes by reducing
risks and governance practices through technical and digital innovation,
enhancing the role of responsibility towards society, preserving the
environment and achieving successful business that benefits shareholders.

At Umm Al Qaiwain General Investment Company, we devote our efforts to
continuous improvement and concern for the interests and aspirations of our

valued shareholders, whether inside or outside the United Arab Emirates.
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We seek to achieve transparency by disclosing all the terms and conditions related to our activities
through the use of simplified language on our website and on the website of the Abu Dhabi Securities
Exchange as well as the Kuwait Stock Exchange. Recognizing that we are accountable to our

shareholders, we place a strong emphasis on maximizing the long-term value of our stocks and assets
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HIGHLIGHTS

NetProfit = A1) 26,966,864

fotalAssets ' A1) 698,999,298

Shareholders

oty AL 610,521,053

aaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaa
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oooooooooooooooooo

Representation of
Representation of

Emiratization Females on the

/ / Board of Directors //

Female Employees
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OUR APPROACH i

Our Company is committed to fostering positive change and contributing to a sustainable future by
aligning our business practices with the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs). Our
approach is grounded in a holistic perspective, addressing key social, environmental, and economic
challenges. By integrating sustainability into our operations. We prioritize transparency to ensure that
our commitment to the SDGs is not just a corporate pledge but a tangible reality. We strive to be a catalyst
for positive change, working towards a world where business success is synonymous with global well-
being.

(@) SUSTAINABLE £7> &
< DEVELOPMENT 'm’*ALS

NO GOOD HEALTH QUALITY GENDER CLEAN WATER
POVERTY AND WELL-BEING EDUCATION EQUALITY AND SANITATION

DEGENT WORK AND 4 1 REDUCED SIJSIAIIIAB!E CITIES 12 RESPONSIBLE
ECONOMIC GROWTH INEQUALITIES ANDBMUHH[S CONSUMPTION
ANDPRODUCTION

QO

CLIMATE LIFE PEACE, JUSTICE PARTNERSHIPS
13 ACTION 14 BELOW WATER 16 AND STRONG 17 FORTHE GOALS @
INSTITUTIONS
92 SUSTAINABLE

DEVELOPMENT

E GOALS
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Environmental
Perspective

As our company does not produce tangible products, our environmental perspective is centered on

responsible stewardship and sustainable financial practices.

In educating our staff, the company has sought to understand how incorporating sustainability into their
practices can provide multiple long-term benefits. It is determined what sustainability means for each
area of the company's investment decisions or services and how sustainability has an increasingly
central role in these decisions.

« Commitment to achieving sustainability in operational processes.

« Ensuring the efficient and sustainable use of natural resources.

* The development of economic activity in the region towards the axis of natural values.

» Monitoring progress towards achieving environmental objectives through regular audits and other

environmental initiatives.

We have implemented multiple procedures that promote sustainable practices, such as reducing energy

consumption, waste, and water usage.
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++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++

"We are proud of the progress we
have made in advancing our
environmental responsibility
nitiatives and will continue to work
towards creating a more sustainable
future for all shareholders.”
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

At Umm Al Quwain General Investments Company, we believe that corporate social responsibility is an
essential pillar, so we aim to make a positive impact within the community in which we operate. By
participating in the sustainable development process for the community as a whole, by providing greater
added value for the shareholders, the market, the environment, society, and employees.

In order to implement this policy, we will continue to focus on the following:

« Working to improve the working life of employees by providing them with training, support and
rewards.

« Work to provide our shareholders with all the correct information by publishing it on the
company's website and the websites of the Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange and the Kuwait Stock
Exchange.

« Create a comfortable work environment for employees to help business growth.

« Creating a diverse work environment that provides equal opportunities for employees and
promotes justice alike.

« Work to enhance the value of the institution to the shareholders.
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FMPLOYEE WELFARE

HUMAN RESOURCES

In our company, we recognize that our most valuable asset is our people.
We are devoted to creating a workplace that is safe, healthy, and
supportive for our employees’ well-being. We strive to create an
environment where our employees can thrive and contribute to the
company'’s sustainability goals.

We are dedicated to providing competitive wages and benefits, as well
as opportunities for professional development and career advancement.
We believe in creating a culture of respect, diversity, and inclusion in the
workplace. We have implemented policies and procedures that promote

fairness and equity in all aspects of employment.
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Perspective

EMPLOYEE WELLNESS

At Umm Al Qaiwain General Investment company, we believe that
employee wellness is an essential part of our sustainability efforts. We are
committed to providing our employees with the resources they need to
stay healthy and productive in their work lives.

We recognize the importance of providing our employees with the tools
they need to maintain their well-being. To this end, we are encouraging
open communication, and bringing diversions of activities in the office to
help reduce stress level in the workplace.

We are committed to providing a safe working environment for all of our
employees. We have implemented safety protocols and ensured that our
employees are well-aware of all risks so that they can report unsafe
conditions quickly.

All of our employees are on full-time basis. We offer multiple incentives to
keep them motivated such as, rewards and bonuses based on employee

performance, health insurance, and home travel tickets.
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GENDER EQUALITY

DIVERSITY & EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

While our company currently exhibits a gender distribution of 70% male and 30% female, we are
committed to fostering a workplace that champions diversity and inclusivity. Recognizing the
importance of gender equality, we actively seek to address any disparities and promote a more
balanced representation across all levels of our organization. Our ongoing efforts include providing
equal opportunities for professional growth, and fostering a supportive work environment where
individuals of all genders feel valued and empowered. Through these initiatives, we aspire to not only
achieve greater gender equality but also cultivate a corporate culture that reflects the richness of
diverse perspectives and experiences.

The company is making huge efforts in working toward gender equality in the workplace. Since last
year, female empowerment has increased by 10%. when gender equality is present, employees feel
respected and valued, which can lead to increased job satisfaction, motivation, and loyalty. This can
result in higher productivity and better performance. Additionally, equality can help to create a more

diverse workforce that is better equipped to meet the needs of customers.
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FMIRATISATION

Emiratisation is an important part of the sustainability strategy of any company operating in the United
Arab Emirates. It is a policy that encourages companies to hire and promote UAE nationals in order to

provide benefit for the company and the UAE’'s economy as a whole.

As for our company, an Emiratisation rate of 20% was achieved in 2023, this percentage is consistent
with the Emiratisation requirements approved in the UAE. We are proud to of our contribution with the

UAE government efforts to boost employment of UAE nationals.
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TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

At our company, we recognize that an investment in our employees’ skills is an investment in our
collective success. Demonstrating our unwavering commitment to fostering a culture of continuous
improvement, we take pride in offering comprehensive training and development opportunities.

SUSTAINABILITY * ¥ F ¥ ¥ ¥ ¥ F # ¥ £ F F ¥ ¥ # F F + ¥ F ¥F #
L ] - . = & & - - & & &

REPORT | 16



* ® =
L ]
L
L
L
L

L B I

* ® = W

L ]
L ]
L
L
L
L

 * w
L
L
L
L

L B

® B F ok E

Ll
-

L
L
L
L
L

L

*® & &
L
L

" &+ & =
L
LN
L

L T O ]
LN
LN
L

L
L
L

-

"= & &
L
L
L

LS L

" L
LN
LN
L

L
*
L

 * B & & & &

L
L

" & * B o R

" & R

L
L
*

#F & & & + B &

LK
LK
L

-
-
*

* & + ®

" & * B o R

% B & F L # & & k@

* & + ® ® &

& F 8 & * L # @ & & * @ & & # ¥ & & * B o+ B

L

iNg in our people, we are
that our company remao
eader in sustainability for years to

By invest

ns d

ensuring

”

come.

* ¥ ¥ ¥ F # ¥ + #F & + ¥ £ #F F + ¥ F ¥ # ¥ £ F # + £ F ¥ F F F F F + ¥

* ¥

SUSTAINABILITY

& & * ¥

* & & & & & & & & F & & B & & & B F ¥ F B R RS E RS

@ & & & &

17

REPORT |



Economic
Perspective

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Umm Al Quwain General Investments Company is committed to
maintaining the highest standards of corporate governance
practices in accordance with the highest standards of integrity
and transparency to ensure the protection of shareholders' rights
and attract more investments.

The primary role of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) is to
protect and enhance the long-term value of our stakeholders,
particularly the shareholders. The board is responsible for setting
the company's general strategy, and it also supervises the
executive management to ensure the adoption of the highest

standards of corporate governance practices within the company.



$ Economic
L~ Perspective

BOARD DIVERSITY

The inclusion of females in the board of directors of our company is not only a step towards fostering
diversity and gender equality but also a strategic move that positively impacts the economic perspective
and corporate governance. Reflecting our commitment to fostering diversity and inclusivity at the highest
levels of leadership. We recognize the importance of diverse perspectives in driving innovation and
strategic decision-making.
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++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++

"As an embodiment of our
unwavering commitment to economic
excellence, we prioritize diversity and
inclusion, leveraging varieo
perspectives to ensure sustained
financial success.”
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CONCLUSION

We strive to promote sustainability and corporate social responsibility initiatives. We will continue to
manage the current business and apply it in a broader context in response to an effective social,
environmental and economic environment to achieve improved operational results while reducing

negative societal impacts and emphasizing positive societal impacts.
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